
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 7 February 2020 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

On: Monday 17 February 2020 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, A Dart, J Hutchings, 
K James, N Laws, R Lock and R Wiseman 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme 
 

3.   Forward Plan (Page 3) 

4.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

5.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  



 
 

 

6.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

7.   Notice of Motion - Establishment of a Direct Labour Force (Pages 4 - 7) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

8.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

9.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

10.   Temporary Accommodation - Request for Additional Funding (Pages 8 - 12) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

11.   Royal North Devon Golf Club, Westward Ho! (Pages 13 - 16) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

12.   The Plough Art Centre  

 To receive a verbal update from the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 
 

 



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2019/20 
 

Leadership 
 

21 May 2019 
2pm  

25 June 2019 
2pm 

30 July 2019 
2pm  

24 Sept 2019 
2pm  

12 Nov. 2019 
2pm  

7 January 2020 
2pm  

18 February 2020 
2pm  

7 April 2020 
2pm  

         

Community 
& Resources 
(Mondays) 

10 June 2019 
10am  

 

15 July 2019 
6pm 

TUESDAY 
27 August 2019 

10am 
 

14 October 2019 
6pm  

 

25 November 2019 
10am 

20 January 2020 
6pm  

 

16 March 2020 
6pm 

 

TUESDAY 
27 April 2020 

10am 

Finance  Draft Outturn Report 
(DH) 

      

Performance 
 

   QBR Q1 
 

QBR Q2 
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny) 

  QBR Q3 
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny) 

 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Petition 

Stirlings/Fireworks 
(SK) 

 
Policies - Muslim 

Burials (SH) 
 
 
 
 

 
Any 

Recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Changes to the 

Constitution – update 
from Working Group  

 
Any Recommendation 
from Internal Scrutiny: 

 “Call In” – 
Fireworks/starlings” 

 
Town Hall Work Hub 

 
Acquisition of 

Homelessness Property 
(AR) (Pt II) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Verbal update from 
the Constitution WG 

 
Temporary Acc 

Planning App (AR) 
 

Planning Application 
for CCTV Skate Park 

(AR) 
 

PART I & II 
 

Visitors Centre at 
Westward Ho! 
Burrows (AW) 

 
PART II 

 
Security for Cattle 
market site (AR) 

 
Strategic Property 
Acquisitions and 
disposals (AR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Taxi Rank Working 
Group Proposal (J 

Williams) 
 

Update on Notices of 
Motion from FC 

(HOPS) 
 

PART II 
Legal Briefing 

 
Rural workers dwellings 

SPD (DB) 
 

Fees and Charges for 
2020-21 

 
Avon Lane/Westward 

Ho! Park (H Bond) 
 
 
 

Part II 
Proposed alteration to 
Covenant - Hotel Site 

Westward Ho! (HBond) 
 

Property Acquisition 
Update (HB) 

 

Any rec. Internal Scrutiny 
 

Leisure Contract - 
options appraisal (JJ) 

 
Grants Scheme for 
Home Improvement 

Loans - Wessex 
Resolution CIC (SH & J 

Williams) 
 

Police powers re Gypsy 
& Travellers (ST) 
(Leadership only) 

 
Moorings Policy (SD) 

 
PART II 

Hardship Panel (SH) 
Write Off Report (SH) 

 
3 Feb 2020 – 10am 

Budget Special 
 

Budget 2020/21, Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
2020-21 to 2024-25 (SH) 

 
  17 Feb 2020 – 6pm 

Special Meeting 
Notice of Motion – Est. of 

a Direct Labour Force 
(SH) 

 
PART II 

Royal North Devon Golf 
Club Lease 

(HB) 
 

Hostel – outcome of 
Procurement Exercise 

(HB) 
 

The Plough Torrington 
(SH) 

 

Capital Programme 
2020-21 to 2026-27 

(SH) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 3



 
  

REPORT OF Strategic Manager (Resources) 

To: Community & Resources 

Subject: Notice of Motion – Establishment of a Direct Labour Force 

Date: 17th February 2020 Reference:  

 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
For Members of Community & Resources to consider Councillor Bushby’s notice of Motion (Full 
Council – 28 October 2019) that TDC establish a direct labour force. 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 
At 28 October 2019 Full Council meeting Councillor Bushby submitted the following written 
notice of motion: 
 

That Torridge District Council seriously look at re-establishing a direct labour 

force. 

   

The town councils of both Bideford and Northam have done this and it has 

proven to be very effective in terms of work done and value for money. 

 
In accordance with the Council’s constitution the motion was carried that it be referred to 
Community & Resources for consideration when a report could be presented providing 
Members with more detail of the impacts of the proposal. 
 

2. REPORT 
 
The proposal itself has emerged and evolved as a result of a number of detrimental factors 
impacting the deliverability of TDCs Capital and Major Works Programmes.  Over the last 
couple of years it has become evident there has been a trend of: 
 

 increased prices for tendered works 

 a reduction in the number of competitive tenders and bids 

 labour relocating out of the area 
 

The impact of these combined factors is resulting in our inability to deliver planned projects 
within budgets previously approved and an increased risk of contracts failing or being 
delayed when works have started. 
 
Members are aware following previous reports that TDC currently has a forecast deficit on 
the approved capital programme and the types of risk and impacts now being felt will only 
likely serve to worsen that position.  This may necessitate Members having to make some 
difficult decisions around reprioritising, refinancing, delaying or removing projects from the 
Capital Programme. 
 
   
What is driving these changes / impacts? 
 
Whilst it is impossible to directly attribute any specific events causing this affect  the 
information available suggests that it is a combination of factors: 
  

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



 
  

 the uncertainty of Brexit and its implications had led many organisations to postpone 
investment.  Now the levels of risk and uncertainty are reducing that investment is 
starting to filter through and demand for labour is outstripping supply 

 labour resources particularly in the London and the South East have returned to EU 
countries has led to a shortage, which due to the levels of wages available in those 
areas is dragging in supply from other parts of the UK 

 more locally it is evident that the vast scale of the investment at Hinkley Point and the 
labour required is attracting labour from further afield including the Northern Devon 
area 

 Construction price inflation has been on an upward trajectory for some time and 
during the last financial year an exercise was conducted to review project costs 
within the Capital Programme, which indicated at that time around £3.4m against a 
£23m total projected investment. This was reported to Full Council in February 2019. 

 
We have further evidence to report to Members that we are aware that such problems are 
not confined to Northern Devon, but is being felt sub-regionally, regionally and nationally.  
 
History of Direct Labour Forces 
 
Historically Local Authorities built up and employed a range of labour primarily to manage 
the repairs and minor works associated with having their own council housing stock, large 
vehicle fleets and property portfolios 
 
This model works particularly well especially where there are numerous similar work 
requirements due to the properties being of a similar nature i.e. houses: 
 

 Minor repairs – doors, windows locks 

 Painting and decorating 

 Minor electrical and plumbing responsive works 

 Day to day vehicle maintenance 
 
The model becomes less economical if the works are more specialist and the need less 
frequent so that you are employing labour with specialist skills and there is not the work to 
keep them occupied: 
 

 Gas engineers 

 Major repair works / programmes – roofing and windows 

 Major structural and build programmes 
 

This is where specialist organisations can offer economies of scale so that TDC would not 
therefore have to retain specialist trades.  TDC transferred it’s housing stock in 2003 at 
which point the associated workforce was TUPE transferred to what is now Westward 
Housing.  

 
Asset portfolio and resources 
 
Much of what TDC has retained is a diverse range of business related premises (rent / 
leased out), office buildings, hostels and vehicles   
 
In terms of employees that we have retained in house that have responsibilities for dealing 
with some repairs and minor works they are: 
 

 Senior caretaker 

 Caretaking apprentice (just being recruited) 

 Vehicle mechanics (3 FTEs) 

Page 5



 
  

 One FTE covering multi area works. 
 

Therefore these resources are utilised to manage many day to day minor repair and 
maintenance works. 
 
In addition to this we have contractual arrangements in place with Westward Housing for the 
provision of modest level responsive and emergency repairs and other contractors for the 
provision of specific inspection regimes such as gas, water and health and safety. 
 
 
Areas of Impact 
 
The main areas where all of these impacts are felt is the ability to deliver the larger, more 
complex and bespoke works either in relation to our own buildings and construction projects.  
Whilst often planned works they tend to be on more ad hoc basis and not continual 
programmes of work therefore making it more difficult to employ an established workforce.  
Examples of which are: 
 

 Hostel development and refurbishment  

 Burrows centre 

 Demolition works  

 Skate park 
 
It is now well documented and evidenced that labour costs are high and increasing.  Recent 
enquiries have reported £300 per day wages being paid to attract local labour to projects 
where developers want to progress quickly.  
 
Clearly TDC would not be able to compete with these levels as this would have an impact on 
the Council’s overall pay structure.  In addition to which that we are legally bound to offer 
access to an “opt out” pension scheme, which currently adds an additional 17.5% to the 
wage / salary costs of all employees. Local Government may seen as more secure with 
pensions, but now all employers now have to provide access to a pension scheme.  
 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
 
Included in the body of the report  
 
Financial Implications 
 
Included in the body of the report. 
  
Human Resources Implications 
 
There are no specific human resources implications. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
There are no specific sustainability/biodiversity implications. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
 
There are no specific equality / diversity implications 

Page 6



 
  

 
Risk Management 
 
Included in the body of the report. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
Not applicable 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
 
There are no specific data  
 
Leader and Lead Member Views 
 
Date of Consultation – 07/02/2020 
 
Councillor Claire Hodson 
 
At this time creating a direct labour force would not resolve the issues that TDC are facing 
regarding tendered contracts.  I therefore support the recommendation. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
Clearly this is a challenging environment within which to try and deliver an ambitious Capital 
Programme, whilst also trying to balance a revenue budget already forecasting a future 
deficit.  
 
Unfortunately the establishment of a TDC labour force to respond to the challenges does not 
currently appear feasible or cost effective. 
 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the report is noted and Members not progress establishing a direct labour force. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 07/02/2020 

Officers Consulted: -   
Head of Paid Service 
Senior Solicitor 
 

 Contact Officer: Steve Hearse  – Strategic Manager - Resources 

 Background Papers:  

 
 

Page 7



Document is Restricted

Page 8

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Forward Plan
	7 Notice of Motion - Establishment of a Direct Labour Force
	10 Temporary Accommodation - Request for Additional Funding
	11 Royal North Devon Golf Club, Westward Ho!

